IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

Case No. 80,380

FLORIDA BAR NO. 0547026

CAROLANN D. KOZEL,

Appellant,

v.

D. STEVEN OSTENDORF, D.P.M.,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

APPELLANT'S INITIAL BRIEF AS TO JURISDICTION

KELLEY FINN LAW OFFICES, P.A. Attorney for Appellant Suite 900 Courthouse Plaza 28 West Flagler Street Miami, Florida, 33130

(305) *[*374-5**/9**4**/** 

KELLEY A. FINN

<u>raqe</u>

Statement Of The Case and Of the Facts
Disposition In The Court Below 3
(2) Statement Of The Facts 3
Summary Of The Argument
A. The Supreme Court of Florida has jurisdiction due to a conflict in the Appellate courts3
Argument and Citations of Authority4
I. THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA HAS JURISDICTION DUE TO A CONFLICT IN THE APPELLATE COURTS
Conclusion 5
Certificate of Service 5
CITATIONS
Cases:
Beasely v. Girten, 61 So. 2d 179 (Fla. 1952)4
Ramos v. Sanchez, 375 So. 2d 51 (Fla. 2d DCA 1979),4
Anthony v. Schmitt, 557 So. 2d 656 (Fla. 2d DCA 1990), approved Del Duca v. Anthony, 587 So. 2d 1306 (Fla. 1991),4
<u>Wilson v. Woodward</u> , 17 F.L.W. D1470 (Fla. 2d DCA June 12, 1992)4
<pre>Clay v. City of Margate, 546 So. 2d 434 (Fla. 4th DCA),   review denied, 553 So. 2d 1164 (Fla. 1989)</pre>
Reynolds v. Deep South Sports, Inc., 211 So. 2d 37 (Fla. 2d DCA 1968)

# STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED

1. Whether the Supreme Court has jurisdiction due to a conflict in the appellate courts?

# STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND OF THE FACTS

(1) Nature of Case, Course of Proceedings and Disposition In The Court Below

Appellant, CAROLANN D. KOZEL, appeals from the opinion of the District Court of Appeal of Florida Second District filed on July 24, 1992 affirming the orders entered by the trial court dismissing the complaint on January 12, August 13 and December 17, 1990. These orders were appealed to the District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District which affirmed the decision of the trial court, with one concurring opinion and one dissenting opinion. App. 1-10. Appellant now appeals that opinion to this court.

Appellant, CAROLANN D. KOZEL, filed her complaint against D. STEVEN OSTENDORF, D.P.M., appellee, on July 25, 1989 alleging that OSTENDORF had fallen below the standard of care for podiatry in his treatment of KOZEL in that his negligence in providing incorrect and multiple surgeries had caused KOZEL to become permanently disabled. The trial court dismissed the complaint for failure to state a cause of action with leave to amend. The trial court thereafter dismissed the amended complaint for failure to timely file.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

A. The Supreme Court of Florida has jurisdiction due to a conflict in the appellate courts.

The District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District filed an opinion that clearly shows that there is a conflict in the appellate courts due to the concurring opinion and one dissenting opinion on July 24, 1992.

#### ARGUMENT

I.

THE SUPREME COURT HAS JURISDICTION DUE TO A CONFLICT IN THE APPELLATE COURTS.

The Supreme Court has jurisdiction in that there is a conflict in the appellate courts. The Second District filed an opinion which is ten pages in length and includes a concurring and dissenting opinion. That opinion states that it is a well-established tradition of discouraging sanctions that simply cause a party to sue its lawyer. Beasely v. Girten, 61 So. 2d 179 (Fla. 1952). Ramos v. Sanchez, 375 So. 2d 51 (Fla. 2d DCA 1979), Anthony v. Schmitt, 557 So. 2d 656 (Fla. 2d DCA 1990), approved, Del Duca v. Anthony, 587 So. 2d 1306 (Fla. 1991), Wilson v. Woodward, 17 F.L.W. D1470 (Fla. 2d DCA June 12, 1992).

, t.

The dissenting judge also states in his opinion that the majority's opinion seems to be in conflict with Clay v. City of Margate, 546 So. 2d 434 (Fla. 4th DCA), review denied, 553 So. 2d 1164 (Fla. 1989). The dissenting opinion provies for a reversal of the order of dismissal as an abuse of discrection and remand for further proceedings. In providing for that opinion, the dissenting judge states the law which does provide for dismissal for failure to timely file. Reynolds v. Deep South Sports, Inc., 211 So. 2d 37 (Fla. 2d DCA 1968). However, there are many cases which have been

reversed. The dissenting opinion states five relevant factors which should be utilized before dismissing a case with prejudice. The appellant would urge this court to adopt those factors and remand the case for further proceedings.

## CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the Supreme Court should take jurisdiction of this case.