005

10P

**FILED**

SID J. WHITE

DEC 24 1992

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By \_\_\_\_\_  
Chief Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT  
OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

CAROLANN D. KOZEL,  
Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 80,380

D. STEVEN OSTENDORF, D.P.M.,  
Respondent.

---

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON ISSUE OF JURISDICTION

---

ON PETITION FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, SECOND  
DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Gerald W. Pierce  
HENDERSON, FRANKLIN, STARNES & HOLT, P.A.  
Post Office Box 280  
Fort Myers, FL 33902-0280  
(813) 334-4121  
Fla. Bar No. 227803

TOPICAL

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND OF THE FACTS

Respondent, D. Steven Ostendorf, D.P.M., objects to the Statement of the Case and of the Facts in the Petitioner's brief. The second paragraph of that portion of Petitioner's brief improperly relies upon the dissenting opinion. See *Reaves v. State*, 485 So. 2d 829 (Fla. 1986). This brief will refer to the Petitioner's appendix with the symbol "A."

Petitioner appeals from an order entered by the Circuit Court dismissing her medical malpractice complaint. (A 1). The Circuit Court had previously entered an order of dismissal allowing Petitioner twenty days within which to amend her complaint. (A 2). That time was extended by agreement of the parties for an additional ten day period. (A 2). Petitioner, without leave of court or agreement of counsel, failed to file an amended complaint for more than five months after the agreed date. (A 2). The Circuit Court dismissed the amended complaint based upon the failure of the Petitioner to file within the allotted time. (A 2).

On review, the Second District Court of Appeal affirmed the dismissal. (A 2-3). It noted that the trial court has discretion to dismiss a complaint when the plaintiff fails to file a timely amendment. (A 2). It held that such an order of dismissal will not be reversed absent a finding of an abuse of discretion. (A 2). Based upon the extreme delay in amending the complaint, and based upon a lack of any showing that the delay was due solely to the fault of counsel, the

District Court was not persuaded that dismissal was an abuse of discretion. (A 2-3).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

There is no express, direct conflict between the decision of the District Court in this case and the decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal in *Clay v. Margate*, 546 So. 2d 434 (Fla. 4th DCA 1989), review denied, 553 So. 2d 1164 (Fla. 1989). The decisions are entirely consistent. Both appellate courts reviewed the dismissal of a complaint to determine whether the trial court had abused its discretion. In the *Clay* decision, the Court determined that the trial court had abused its discretion. In the instant case, it was determined that there was no abuse of discretion. The facts of the case are dissimilar, which fully explains the difference in result.

## ARGUMENT

The nature of the conflict upon which the Petitioner relies is not discussed in her brief. It appears that the Petitioner is arguing that the District Court applied a rule of law to produce a different result in a case which involves substantially the same controlling facts as a prior case. See *City of Jacksonville v. Florida First National Bank of Jacksonville*, 339 So. 2d 632, 633 (Fla. 1976) (England, J., concurring); *Neilsen v. City of Sarasota*, 117 So. 2d 731, 734 (Fla. 1960).

In both *Clay v. City of Margate*, 546 So. 2d 434 (Fla. 4th DCA 1989), review denied, 553 So. 2d 1164 (Fla. 1989), and in the instant case, the District Courts were reviewing orders of dismissal in order to determine whether the trial courts had abused their discretion. The difference in result is explained by the difference in the circumstances reviewed by the District Courts. The majority opinion in the instant case reveals little of the circumstances which it reviewed in determining that no abuse of discretion was shown. In fact, the only circumstances revealed in the majority opinion are the fact that Petitioners delayed for more than five months in filing her amended complaint, and the fact that there was no showing that the delay was solely the fault of counsel. Additional factual materials are supplied in the dissenting opinion, but any conflict between the instant case and *Clay v. City of Margate*, must be established within the four corners

of the majority decision. *Reaves v. State*, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986). A dissenting opinion cannot be used to establish jurisdiction. *Id.* Even if this Court were to consider the additional facts and circumstances related in the dissenting opinion, it is clear that there is no express, direct conflict between the two District Court opinions. The difference in result is based on the difference in circumstances.